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THE TOWNSHIPS OF CUYAHOGA COUNTY. ‘

1868, with a capital of $300,000, for the purpose of
manufacturing all kinds of powder. The works are
located near what is called five-mile-lock. Here the
company owns one hundred and thirty acres of land,
upon which are the mills, tenement houses, ete.
Thirty men are employed, and about four hundred
kegs of powder are produced daily; the prodnet in-
cluding blasting, mining, shipping, cannon, meal,
and several grades of sporting powder. Mr. L. Aus-
tin, who was the secretary of the company until 1873,
has been its president since that time.

THE CALIFORNIA POWDER COMPANY,

an association incorporated by the State of California,
has branch factories in various parts of the country,
and among them one in Newbunrg. This branch was
established in 1877, for the purpose of manufacturing
dynamite, or Hercnles powder, for blasting. The
business at these works aggregates $300,000 annnally.
Forty men are employed, being nuder the direction of
William Willson, the superintendent.

The mills are located near the line of the Ohio
canal, in a deep ravine upon an extensive farm owned
by the company, and comprise about a dozen differ-
ent stronctures.

THE NEWBURG FERTILIZER COMPANY,

composed of J. B. Peck, J. H. Breck, Jr., and E. 3.
Peck have a large establishment near the river devoted
to the mannfacture of bone-dust, superphosphate of
lime and- neatsfoot oil. Thecompany was established
about three years ago, as the successor of Davidson &
Palmer.

CHAPTER LXXNX.
OLMSTEAD.

The First Improvemeni—James Geer—Elijah and D. J. Stearns—A
Large Purchase—D. J. Stearns Becomes a Pioneer—Celebrating
the Fourth—Daniel Bunnel—Olmstead Called Kingston—Three
Lonesome Years—High Price for Wheat—First Marriage—First
Birth—First Death—Amos Briggs—Mrs. Scales and the Wild
Animals—Major Hoadley—His Girls Raise a House—Remark-
ahle Death of John Hanley—Settlers After 1819—First Gristmill
—First Religious Organizations—Indian Sugar Bush—Organiza-
tion of Lenox—Division of Lenox—Reorganization—First Officers
Afterward—A Big “Black Squirrel”’—Lenox Changes to Olmstead—
The Seven Fitches—Mr. Ba'num’s House—Kilpatrick’s Mill—First
Tavern—The Union Meeting-house —A Lyceum on Butternut
Ridge—General 1lmprovement—The Railroads—Clmstead Falls and
Lake View—The War—Stone Quarries—The Universalist Church—
Wesleyan Methodist Chuirch--Methodist Episcopal Church—Congre.
gational Church on the Ridge—St. Mary’s Church—Congregational
Church at the Falls—Union School—Lyceum, ete., iu District Numher
One—Olmstead Falls Village—Principal Township Offlcers.

TowNSHIP six and range fifteen, now known as
Olmstead, saw the first improvement made while war
was still raging along the not distant frontier. In
the year 1814 James Geer, then a resident of Colum-
bia, which is now in Lorain connty, but was at that
time in Cuyahoga, cnt out the underbrush and
girdled the trees on a small piecc of land in the
southwest corner of the township, on what has since
been known as the Browning farm. This he planted

to corn the same year, and raised such a crop as he
could among the trees.

The next spring, after the declaration of peace,
Mr. Geer put np a small log house at the place first
mentioned, and moved thither with his family, be-
coming the first permanent resident.of the present
township of Olmstead. His son, Calvin Geer, was
then a boy of seven, and is now the earliest surviving
resident of the township. Wild beasts swarmed all
around, and often appeared in the edge of the little
clearing. Ome of young Calvin’s oldest recollec-
tions is regarding the slanghter by his father of a
bear which showed himself one Sunday evening, soon
after their arrival, on the bank of Rocky river, not
far from their cabin. Mr. Geer’s first shot broke the
animal’s back, but such was his size and vitality that
it took three more balls to kill him.

The same year, 1815, Elijah Stearns and his son,
David Johnson Stearns, came to Kingston, as Olm-
stcad was then called, to select land for future settle-
ment. The senior Mr. Stearns had a large family of
boys, and was desirous to obtain an extensive tract of
land for their use. He selected and purchased a
thousand and two acres on Butternut Ridge, in the
northwest part of the township, at two dollars per
acre. Of this it was arranged that D. J. Stearns wasto
have a hundred and fifty acres. The latter was then an
active, enterprising yonng man of twenty-one, with a
constitution remarkubly well fitted to bear the hard-
ships of frontier life, as is shown by the fact that after
passing through the whole pioneer period of Olmstead’s
existence, and after residing sixty-three years in the
township, he still survives, at the age of eighty-five,
in a condition of remarkable physical vigor, and of
undiminished mental power.

It was expected that the proprietors would send a
surveyor to lay out the land, and D. J. Stearns
waited awhile for his arrival, in the meantime clear-
ing off a small piece of land near the present resi-
dence of Buel Stearns. He then returned to Ver-
mont.

In 1816, having perfected the purchase of his land,
he came back to Kingston to reside upon it. He was
accompanied by his brother Alva, and by Asa Knapp,
bnt they only remained long enough to help him put
up a log house and make a beginning in the woods.
Mr. Stearns still preserves a note of three hundred
and thirty-four dollars, one of four given by the
Stearns’ for land, to the trustees of the estate of
Aaron Olmstead, who had been in his lifetime the
proprietor of the township. Young Stearns had a
sub-agency under Judge Kirtland, the agent of the
proprietors, to sell their land. He, however,had sold
only two lots when the owners stopped thesale. The
Fourth of July, 1816, was celebrated by Mr. Stearns,
assisted by Mr. Greer, in clearing out the ¢‘ridge road”
from Rocky river, along Butternut ridge, toward the
home of the former. They worked from sunrise till
sunset, cutting out the saplings so as to make a pass-
able pathway, for a distance of two miles.
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1846. Trustees, Caleh Cook, Elisha Fitch, Geo. McKillip; clerk, C.
Phillips; treasurer, J. Kennedy; assessor, D. J. Stearns.

1847. Trustees, H. Frishee, S. Fitch, John Carpeuter; clerk, Jotham
Howe; treasurer, Newton P. Loomis; assessor, V. Stearns.

1848, Trustees, H. K. Miner, Amos Briggs, D. J. Stearns; clerk, J. R,
Henry; treasurer, Thomas F. Husted; assessor, Chester Phillips.

1849. Trustees, Eli Fitch, John Kennedy, Norman Dutcher; clerk, J.
R. Henry, treasurer, Jotham Howe; assessor, C. Phillips.

1850. Trustees, Buel Stearus, Chauncey Fitch, Alanson Tilly; clerk,

Elliott Stearns; treasurer, Jotham Howe; assessor, C. Phillips.

1851, Trustees, Samuel Daniels, Elias P. Usher, Caleb Cook; clerk,
Geo. W. Thompson; treasurer, William Romp; assessor, Chauncey Fitch.

1852, Trustees, Samuel Daniels, E. P. Usher, Caleh Cook; clerk, G.
W. Thompson; treasurer, Wm. Romp; assessor, C. Fitch.

1853. Trustees, E. P, Usher, Peter Kidney, Jobn Ames; clerk, G. W.
Thompson; treasurer, J. Howe; assessor, C. Fitch.

1854, Trustees, E. P. Usher, Chauncey Mead, Harvey Barnum; clerk,
G. W. Thompson; assessor, Chauncey Fitch.

1855. Trustees, Cyrus P. Dryden, Harvey Barnum, Eli Fitch; clerk,
A. G. Hollister; treasurer, Henry S. Howe; assessor. (. C. Fitch,

1856. Trustees, Chauncey Fitch, Thomas Brown, Buel Stearns; clerk,
N. P. Loomis; treasurer, Elisha Fitch; assessor, Francis Fitch.

1857. Trustees, C. Fitch, T. Brown, B. Stearns; clerk, N. P. Loomis;
treasurer, E. Fitch; assessor, F. Fitch.

1858. Trustees, Eastman Bradford, James P. Rice, C. R. Vaughn;
clerk, Jas. H. Strong; treasurer, N, P. Loomis; assessor, C. C. Fitch.

1859, Trustees, C. R. Vaughn, Lewis Short, Charles Carpenter; clerk,
J. H. Strong; treasuver, Esstman Bradfcrd; assessor, Buel Stearns,

1860. Trustees, Henry Romp, O. C. Lawtence, Eli Fitch; clerk, Rich-
ard Pollard; treasurer, Elisha Fitch; assessor, C. C Fitch.

1861, Trustces, Calvin Geer, Luther Barnum, J. W. Fitch; clerk, O.
W. Kendall; treasurer, C. P.!Dryden; assessor, Newell Nelson.

1862. Trustees. J. W. Fitch, H. Romp, Benoni Bartlets; clerk, John
G. Fitch; treasurer, Elisha Fitch; assessor, Buel Stearns.

1863. Trustees, S. W. Fitch, H. Hoffty zer, Benj. Salisbu1y; clerk, John
G. Fitch; treasurer, William W, Mead; assessor, Newell Nelson.

1864, Trustees, J. G. Fitch, G. W. Kennedy, C. R. Vaughn; clerk, N.
P. Loomis; treasurer, W. W. Mead; assessor, Newell Nelson.

1865. Trustees, Chauncey Fitch, C. C. Fitch. Wm. Bushy; clerk, J. G.
Fitch; treasurer, Wm. W, Mead.

1866. Trustees, Eastman Bradford, Calvin Geer, Charles S. Underhill;
clerk, J. G. Fitch; treasurer, W. W. Mead; assessor, G. W. Kennedy.

1867. Trustees, Eastman Bradford, Newman Pickard, Charles C.
Fitch; clerk, J. G. Fitch; treasurer, W. W, Mead; assessor, Gardner
Stearns.

1868, Trustees, C. C. Fitch, Benoni Bartlett, Lester B radford; clerk,
Asahel Osborn; treasurer, W. W. Mead; assessor, Gardner Stearns.

1869, Trustees, O. P. Smith, J. R. Ruple, Elisha Fitch; clerk. Asahel
Oshorn; treasurer. W, W. Mead; assessor, James R. Shaw.

1870, Trustees, Calvin Geer, David H, Barnard, Benj. Salishury; clerk,
A.. Oshorn; treasuver, W. W. Mead; aasessor, R. T. Elliot,

1871. Trustees, B. Salisbury, Lester Bradford, O. P. Smith; clerk, J.
G. Fitch; treasorer, W. W, Mead; assessor. Gardner Stearns.

1872. Trustees, D. H. Barnard, C. C. Fitch, Wm, J. Camp; clerk,
Henry Northrop; treasurer, W. W, Mead; assessor, Joel Hall.

1873. Trustees, D. H. Barnard, C. C. Fitch, M. E. Baker; clerk, R.
Pollard; ireasurer, W. W. Mead; assessor, R. T. Elliot.

1874 Trustees, Wm. J. Camp, Jas. Hicky, Wm. Busby; clerk, Rich-
ard Pollard; treasurer, Wm. W. Mead; assessor, Lawrence Dramley.

1875, Trustees, Wm. Busby, G. W. Kennedy, L. C. Taney; clerk,
Henry Northrop; treasurer, Geo. R. Dryden; assessor, Lawrence
Bramley.

1876. Truatees, Clayton tharp, G. W. Kennedy, L. C. Taney; clerk,
Henry Northrop; treasurer, G. B. Dryden; assessor, Henry Romp.

1877. Truslees, Clayton Sharp, Wm. T. Williams, John Hull; clerk,
J. G. Fitch; treasurer, G. B. Dryden; assessor. G. W. Kennedy.

1878. Trusteea, Clayton Sharp, Wm. T. Williams, William Daniels;
clerk, W. D, Bennett; treasurer, G. B. Dryden; asscssor, Erastus Libby.

1879. Trustees. Clayton Sharp, W. F. Williams, W. W. Darrald; clerk,
W. D. Bennett; treasurer, Geeorge B. Dryden; assessor, Erastus Libby.

DAVID JOHNSON STEARNS.

Eliphualet Stearns was of English descent, and was
a captain in the American forces during the Revolu-
tion. His son Elijah, a native of Massachusetts,
served with him, acting at first as his servani, but
being afterward promoted to a lieutenancy, in which
capacity he rendered zealous service in the cause of
liberty. After his discharge at the close of the war,
he located at Dover, Vermont, where in the year 1793

David Johnsen Stearns, the subject of our sketch,
was born; he being the second of eleven children.

In 1815 David J. Stearns emigrated to Ohio, and
settled on ‘“ Butternut Ridge,” in Kingston, now

Olmstead, where he bought a tract of land, and cut
the first tree, for the purpose of improvement, that
was felled on the ridge. In February, 1819, he was
married to Polly Barnum, of Fernsburg, Vermont,
by whom he had eight children.

My. Stearns was elected town clerk in 1323, and
held the office for seven years without remuneration.
In 1831 he was elected township trustee, serving two
years, and he also acted as assessor one year. Politi-
cally he has alwuys been a Democrat. In religion he
is a Univeralist, having been a member of that
church sixteen years. Mr. Stearns remains a fair

" representative of pioneer days, contented to have been

a successful farmer, free from ostentation, and de-
voted to the best interests of the people around him.
Being in fair health and good spirits, he enjoys life
even in his old age, and the burden of his eighty-six
years, rests very lightly upon him.
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TuMEDIATELY after theclose of the war of 1812-15,
a few emigrants moved into township seven, range



